ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 5, 2012
3:18 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Bob Ml ler

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 358
"An Act relating to an advertising canmpaign in support of
opening the Arctic National WIldlife Refuge for devel opnent.™

- MOVED HB 358 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 266
"An Act relating to the practice of naturopathy; and providing
for an effective date."
- Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: HB 358
SHORT TI TLE. ANWR ADVERTI SI NG CONTRACT
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) PRUI TT

02/ 22/ 12 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 12 (H) L&C, FIN
03/ 05/ 12 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE LANCE PRUI TT
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 5, 2012



Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 358.

DI RK CRAFT, Staff

Representative Lance Pruitt

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the sectional analysis of HB 358,
on behalf of the sponsor, Representative Lance Pruitt.

WANETTA AYERS, Director

Anchorage O fice, Econom c Devel opnent Section

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 358.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:18: 08 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee nmeeting to order at 3:18 p.m Representatives Saddler,
Thonmpson, MIller, and Oson were present at the call to order.
Representatives Holnmes, Johnson, and Chenault arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

HB 358- ANVR ADVERTI SI NG CONTRACT

3:18: 24 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 358, "An Act relating to an advertising canpaign
in support of opening the Arctic National WIdlife Refuge for
devel opnent . "

3:19:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LANCE PRU TT, Alaska State Legislature, stated
that HB 358 is an advertising canpaign in support of the opening
the Arctic National WIldlife Refuge (ANWR). The bill would
direct the state to contract with a qualified trade association
to advertise and support opening the coastal plain of ANAR for
oil and gas exploration and devel opnent. In 1980, the Al aska
National Interest Lands Conservation Act (AN LCA) prohibited the
| easing and any other developnent that would lead to the
production of oil and gas on the ANWR However, today the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 5, 2012



domestic denmand for oil is going up while donmestic production is
going dowmn. Thus the U S. nust inport nore from sources outside
the US. He related that new technol ogy devel oped in Al aska has
reduced the environnental inpact for developnment on the North
Sl ope. He remarked that if Prudhoe Bay was devel oped today the

footprint would be as small as 1,526 acres. He appl auded the
ability of industry to develop the technology to this point.
Additionally, oil and gas developnent has proven it can
successfully coexist in Alaska' s Arctic. The Central caribou

herd has grown from 3,000-5,000 at the tine of developnent to
66, 000 now. He acknow edged that several caribou herds exist,

but they have all grown since devel opnent started. While the
Al aska | egislature understands these inpacts, people in the
Lower 48 don't necessarily know these facts. He shared

statistics that indicate Lower 48 residents think about 15
percent of Al askans want ANWR to be devel oped even though about
78 percent of Al askans want to see ANWR devel oped. He expl ai ned
that many Lower 48 residents think by |obbying the Congress
agai nst ANWR devel opnent they are protecting Al askans. Further
with respect to the environnental inpact on caribou herds -
about 15 percent of people believe the caribou have increased
but the rest of Lower 48 residents think caribou herds have
decr eased. He enphasized the inportance of providing accurate
information to residents in the Lower 48, which wll help
Al aska's Congressional del egati on whose col | eagues shoul d not be
m sinformed by their constituents. Al aska's state revenues are
dependent on resource developnent so it nakes sense for us to
pronote responsible developnment for the maxinmum benefit to
Al askans.

3:23:32 PM

DI RK CRAFT, Staff, Representative Lance Pruitt, Al aska State
Legi slature, on behalf of the sponsor, Representative Lance
Pruitt, stated that this bill is nodeled after the state's
tourism marketing contracts under AS 44.33.125. He referred to
Section 1, subsection (a), would require the Departnent of
Commerce, Comunity & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED) to contract
with a single qualified trade organization for an advertising
canpai gn advocating resource developnent in the 10-02 area of

ANVR. The bill requires a qualified trade association to
provide matching funds for the canpaign and for the canmpaign to
be approved by the departnment. Subsection (b) would require the
contract to include essential provisions required by the
depart nent, and subsecti on (c) woul d allow additional

appropriated funds to be added to contract and the departnent
may require the association to match the additional funds.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 5, 2012



3:24:37 PM

MR. CRAFT reported subsection (d) identifies that materials
produced wunder a contract are the joint property of the
association and the departnent and may only be used under the
contract terns. The sponsor initially questioned the need for
this section, but discovered these provisions are nodeled after
the ones used in tourism marketing contracts to protect their
advertising strategy from detractors and other conpetitors, as
well as protecting the conpany's proprietary know edge. He
related a scenario in which the conmpany may have a marketing
bl ueprint that works well in South Carolina or another state

This | anguage would protect the conpany from conpetitors using
their bl ueprint. Subsection (e) would restrict noney
appropriated for a contract, which may not be used to |obby a
muni ci pality or the state, to raise funds for that purpose, or
be used for adm nistrative or overhead costs which support this
specific type of effort.

3:25:44 PM

MR. CRAFT referred to subsection (f), which indicates the
contract is not subject to the state procurenent code
Additionally, a qualified trade association who is awarded a
contract may also award a subcontract on a conpetitive bid
basi s. He stated that subsection (g) defines ternms used in the
bill.

3:25:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to page 2, |line 15, which
identifies that any materials produced are not public records
She questioned the reason for this provision. She assuned the
anount of noney expended in the contract would be a public
record.

MR. CRAFT answered she is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES said she needed to consider this a little
nor e.

MR CRAFT said this bill is nodeled after state's tourism
mar ket i ng statute.

3:26:58 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 5, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked what entity would be likely to
receive the contract, noting that at tines vendors are known,
and while a contract is not limted to a specific vendor it is
assumed certain vendors wll apply. She inquired as to whether
one entity is likely or if nore than one entity is expected to
bid on this contract.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT answered that there is not one particul ar
entity anticipated to apply. He pointed out a letter of support
fromthe Alliance in nenbers' packets. He al so suggested that
the Alaska G| and Gas Association (AO®), and Resource
Devel opnent Council for Alaska, Inc. (RDC) mght also apply. He
reiterated that this bill was not geared for any particular
or gani zati on.

3:28: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES related her understanding that this bill
sinply sets up a nechanism Thus it has a zero fiscal note or
rather an indeterm nate fiscal note. She asked about the anount
of noney that would likely be requested to fund this program

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT answered that it would depend on the trade

or gani zati on. He surmsed that if the Alliance were to be
awarded the contract, he estimated it might be about $500, 000,
but ACGA may have an opportunity for a |arger anount. He said
did not expect $1 mllion would cover the whole nation, but the

funds nmay help wth a targeted canpaign, which could be
devel oped by working with Al aska's Congressional delegation to
identify specific nenbers who may be m sinfornmed about ANVR

3:29:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked how this effort would overlap wth
the efforts taken by Arctic Power, which the legislature funds
each vyear. She further asked how this nandate would nmesh with
Arctic Power's nandate.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT pointed out that none of this funding
could be used for |obbying the Congress; however, Arctic Power
is the mechani sm used to | obby nmenbers. This contract would be
geared to educate the public and would comunicate wth
constituents of nenmbers that Arctic Power will | obby.

3:30: 54 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 5, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked him to distinguish between | obbying
and educating the public.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT offered his belief that |obbying would be
act ual communicating wth an elected body, whereas, the
mar keti ng and education efforts would be directed at the general
public, either in a specific state or throughout the nation. He
viewed the targeted group as the constituents of the Congress.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER agr eed. He reiterated that this bill is
nodel ed after the tourism marketing statutes. He related his
understanding that the goal is to conmunicate a nessage and

bridge msinformation on ANWR and clarify any concerns people
may have.

3:33: 07 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER questioned the three-year tineline.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT responded that the tinefrane would give
the legislature an opportunity to consider the effectiveness.
He acknow edged the value of sunset legislation since it gives
| egislature an opportunity review and determ ne whether the
contract or program is necessary and delete the statutes if the
programis not being used.

3:33:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for clarification on the scope of
the advertising canpaign and if the advertising would include
radio or television adverti sing.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT answered that DCCED would authorize the
contract and their experts wll decide the best comrunication
met hods to use.

3:34: 23 PM

REPRESENTATIVE M LLER recalled sone high Ilevel advertising
canpai gns previously aired. He wondered if the participants
could be kept local, and whether some preference for an Al aska
advertising conpany or public relations firm could be included
in the bid criteria. He has often heard critiques of
advertising using Hollywod actors or photographs that depict
Al aska, but the ads were actually filmed in Canada. He said he
favored Al askans telling and showi ng Al aska's story.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 5, 2012



MR. CRAFT answered that the language is nodeled after the
tourism marketing industry, which uses actors, but the
advertising is filmed in Al aska.

CHAIR OLSON referred to Wanetta Ayers to discuss local hire and
bi dder preference provisions.

3:36: 29 PM

REPRESENTATIVE M LLER further asked whether the approval or
recomendati ons for brainstormng would reside in the DCCED

MR. CRAFT answered yes.
3:36: 50 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HOLMES related her understanding that this
contract is exenpt from procurenent code so she was uncertain
whet her an Al aska bi dder's preference woul d apply.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT deferred to the DCCED
3:37:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT referred to page 2, line, 7, and related
that the DCCED may require the association to provide matching
funds in any anount for additional funds. He asked for
clarification on the source of any additional funds.

MR. CRAFT answered that this specific |anguage gives the
departnment the ability to require additional participation from
the qualified trade association if the legislature were to
appropriate additional funds.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT related his understanding that the
qualified trade association may or may not have to match any
addi tional funds appropriated after initial funds were awarded.

MR. CRAFT said that is correct.

3:38:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT enphasi zed that this bill is needed. He
recently spent three days talking to approximately 25 different
Congressi onal offices. He said while this program would not be

used to directly | obby the Congress he discovered that people do
not have the facts about ANWR, which was evident from a nenber's

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 5, 2012



tone or the tone of his/her staff. He pointed out that ANWR has
not been an issue in the past seven or eight years in the
Congr ess. He further said that nost did not know nmuch about
ANWR, its location or what it enconpasses, and nany erroneously
bel i eved nost Al askans did not support oil and gas develop in
ANVR. He cautioned nenbers that a group opposing ANWVR is a
vocal group

3:39: 56 PM

CHAIR OLSON remarked that the nost conpelling testinony he has
ever heard was testinony given by Congressman Don Young. He
rel ated that Congressman Yong held up a piece of white paper and
said, "This is ANV in wnter." He went on to inform people
that ANWR does not have nountains or valleys, but is flat and
white.

3:40: 20 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT pointed out that advertising canpaigns

are effective, depending on the canpaign and the audience. He
remar ked that the |egislature cares about the facts.

3:40: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to page 2, line 28, and asked
whet her the amount of noney that can be contracted out is
limted. He further asked whether it 1is possible for the

gualified trade association to pass-through funds to adverti sing
conpani es. He suggested a nunber of advertising conpanies would
likely be interested in this opportunity.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT deferred to the DCCED to better respond.
3:41:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the bill requires the
advertising efforts be coordinated wth those undertaken by
Arctic Power.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT answered that HB 358 does not specifically
address those aspects, but he anticipated a qualified trade
association would use Arctic Power's |obbyist to understand the
audi ence that should be targeted; however, this requirenent is
not in the proposed bill.

3:42:14 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 5, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the bill has any benchmarks
to determ ne the progranis success.

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT answered ultimately once an ice road is
built the efforts would be deened successful.

3:42: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said he likes the idea of this bill. He
agreed the truth and facts should be dissemnated to the public
and should trunp innuendos.

REPRESENTATI VE THOMPSON agreed wth Representative Saddler's
remar ks. He said that the state has viewed substantial anti-
ANWR advertising and it is time for people to get the truth
about ANVR

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER said we need to nove the Arctic plain, not
nmount ai ns. He said he was glad that Representative Pruitt has
brought this bill forward.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT said, "W do need to nove nountains,
back to where they were originally at in the filmand not closer
to the 10-02. W need to nove them back to where they were
originally [located]."

3. 44:. 24 PM

WANETTA AYERS, Director, Anchorage Ofice, Econom c Devel opnent
Secti on, Depar t ment of Conmer ce, Communi ty & Economc
Devel opnent (DCCED) introduced herself.

3:44: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES questioned whether Al askans would be

entitled to any bidder preferences. She further asked for
recommendati ons on | anguage to add to the bill.

3:45:13 PM

MS. AYERS related that the DCCED has previously been quite
successful in placing work wth Alaskan firns under the
qualified trade association (QTA) nodel. She offered her belief

that the DCCED follows the procurenent code. She acknow edged
while she is not an expert she has been through the process a
nunber of tinmes. She reported that the DCCED nust consider al

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 5, 2012



of fers. She recalled previously when the departnent has used
the procurenent code and was able to extend an Al aska bidder
pr ef erence, particularly wth respect to cost, that the
pref erence has hel ped Al askan firns secure those contracts.

3:45: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES pointed out that this contract would be
exenpt from the procurenent code. She asked whether the
departnment has any flexibility to provide a preference given the
| anguage in the bill.

MS. AYERS answered that she does not have any experience letting
a contract outside the procurenent code. She offered to check
with procurenment officers and report back to the commttee.

3:46: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for an estimate of costs for a
successful canpaign of this type.

M5. AYERS offered that the scope of the public advocacy
advertising in targeted Congressional districts is akin to
effort taken on other public relations canpaigns to deliver

targeted nedia nessages about commercial devel opnent. She did
not recall any specific figures, but offered that the tourism
mar keti ng progranms have ranged from $11 mllion to $21 million

over the past 12-15 years. She said that obviously, the nature
of this canpaign is somewhat nore focused, so she inmagined the
cost would be significantly less than that range. Additionally,
she agreed with Representative Pruitt that sonme of this will be
contingent on the capacity of the QIA to generate matching
dollars. She imagined the fiscal note would appropriate up to a
certain anmount, which would be dependent on the matching funds.
She recalled that the match was sonmetines difficult to neet. In
those instances the match was |ater adjusted for the QIA nodel
in the tourismindustry. She offered that 50 percent match was
problematic for the tourism industry and had to be reduced over
time in order to nake it nore attainabl e.

3:49: 24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER recalled his earlier guestion on
provisions for the QIA to subcontract out the advertising. He

inquired as to whether the contractor could pass through funds
and if it would be advisable to do so.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 5, 2012



M5. AYERS answered that typically there is some admnistrative
set aside or consideration for the QITA. She viewed that sone of

these details could be made part of bid solicitation. She
surmised it is highly Ilikely that the QIA wll be nost
interested in directing as much funding as possible to the
advertising canpaign. She stated it is difficult to predict

wi t hout knowi ng the organization, but it does seem that given
the scope of the project nost of the funds would be passed
through to a subcontractor advertising firm to nmaximze the
advocacy effort.

3:50: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER remarked if Al askan subcontractors are
used that it would be nice if they would [ower their markup in
the interests of helping Al aska's econony. He suggested they
may wsh to limt their markup from 15-17 percent, or perhaps
even | ower.

M5. AYERS said she thought that would be highly unlikely.
Further, she said she would not dictate any business nodel or
cost to the private sector.

3:51:51 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 358. He comrented t hat
no one contacted his office.

3:52:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to report HB 358 out of committee
with i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he acconpanyi ng
indetermnate fiscal note. There being no objection, HB 358 was
reported fromthe House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee.
3:52: 43 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
3:52 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 5, 2012



